
1 
 

GRANVILLE VILLAGE COUNCIL 

                                                    AGENDA 

January 3, 2024 

7:30 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

3. ROLL CALL 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. CITIZENS COMMENTS  

6. OLD BUSINESS 

A. APPEAL HEARING DELIBERATION FOR THE OCTOBER 12, 2023 DECISION 

OF THE BOARD OF ZONING AND BUILDING APPEALS TO GRANT A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 228 EAST ELM STREET AS A SHORT-

TERM RENTAL 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 A RESOLUTION TO AWARD THE BID FOR THE 

BRYN DU BARN RENOVATION PROJECT TO ROBERTSON 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC AND TO AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT THERETO  

B. RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE 

MANAGER TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS FOR VARIOUS VILLAGE PROJECTS 

AND ITEMS THROUGHOUT THE YEAR 2024 

C. RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO 

VARIOUS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES ESTABLISHED 

PURSUANT TO THE CHARTER OF THE VILLAGE OF GRANVILLE AND THE 

OHIO REVISED CODE 

D. ORDINANCE NO. 01-2024 AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE PERMANENT 

ZONING OF INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT (ID) FOR THE PROPERTY OWNED 

BY DENISON UNIVERSITY THAT IS APPROXIMATELY 31.317 +/- ACRES 

LOCATED ALONG NEW BURG STREET 

 



2 
 

8. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Minutes from the Village Council Meeting of December 20, 2023  

9. COMMITTEE / COMMISSION / BOARD REPORTS 

Granville Community Foundation (Olbur)  

Granville Recreation District (Johnson)  

Planning Commission (Mickelson)  

Granville Arts Commission (Keethler Ball)  

Bryn Du Commission (Demarest)  

Open Space Committee (Mickelson) 

Tree & Landscape Commission (Koehler)   

Union Cemetery (Koehler) 

Environmental Sustainability Committee (Mickelson)  

10. OTHER COUNCIL MATTERS 

11. OTHER STAFF MATTERS 

12. MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS 

January 8   Planning Commission   6:00 P.M. 

January 9    Tree & Landscape    7:00 P.M. 

January 11   BZBA Meeting   5:30 P.M. 

January 15   Arts Commission   7:00 P.M. 

January 17   Council Meeting    7:30 P.M. 

January 22    Planning Commission   6:00 P.M. 

January 25   Bryn Du Commission  7:00 P.M. 

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION- Pursuant to O.R.C. 121.22(G) (3) Conferences with an 

attorney for the public body concerning disputes involving the public body that are the 

subject of pending or imminent court action. 

14. ADJOURNMENT 











































































































































Letter from Vice Chair of BZBA, Neal 
Zimmers























 

Granville Board of Zoning & Building Appeals 
Minutes for Meeting     

October 12, 2023 
 5:30 p.m. 

 
 

 
Call to Order:  Mr. Gill called the meeting to order at 5:30p.m.  
 
Members Present:  Mr. Gill, Mr. Menzer, Mr. Kemper and Mr. Zimmers 
 
Member Absent:  Mr. Burge 
 
Staff Members Present: Debra Yost, Long Range Planner; Jenn Rubal, Zoning Administrator; 
Herb Koehler, Village Manager 
 
Also present were:  Graham Hickey, Ryan Hottle, Vee Hottle, Larry Hottle, Tim Klingler, Margie 
Hickey, Courtney McWalter, Keith McWalter, Bruce Westall, Bob Johnson, Charles Williams, 
Brian Hennis, Hunter Prendergast and Daryl Tulimieri. 
 
Citizen comments:  none 
 
In the discussions regarding Applications #2023-177 and #2023-192, CUP stands 
for Conditional Use Permit, STR stands for short-term rental, and VRD stands for 
Village Residential District. 
 
Old Business: 
 
a).    Application #2023-177, submitted by Sarah Straley and Ryan Hottle, property owners, 
for the property located at 228 East Elm Street.  The request is for review and approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the property to be utilized as a short-term rental.  The property 
is zoned Village Residential District (VRD), and is located within the Architectural Review Overlay 
District (AROD). 
 
Mr. Gill swore in Ryan Hottle, Vee Hottle, Tim Klingler, Keith McWalter, Bruce Westall, Bob 
Johnson, Brian Hennis, Hunter Prendergast, Daryl Tulimieri, Debra Yost and Jenn Rubal. 
 
Discussion: 
Mr. Gill noted the exhibits:  a letter from Ryan Hottle, a letter from Larry and Vee Hottle, a letter 
from Neal Zimmers and Jenn Rubal’s map of the Village Residential District (VRD). 
 
Mr. Zimmers noted [per Denison University] available Airbnb’s in the VRD, albeit more than the 
map showed (namely one on North Pearl Street).  Jenn Rubal stated the one he referred to was 
in the Village Business District (VBD). 
 
Mr. Zimmers submitted his view on the issue in writing as an exhibit, namely:  

• It was important to look at the entire statute of the section of the Village Code and 
especially the overall intent 

• Village Council’s purpose clause stated the intent of “maintenance of Granville’s 
existing residential neighborhoods is essential” 

• Conditional uses were different from permitted uses 



 

• The applicant’s intent and objectors’ views 
• If more STR’s were to be allowed, he believed Village Council’s intent should be 

focused on 
• His intent was to vote the application be denied. 

 
Mr. Menzer explained the difference between an Airbnb and a bed and breakfast with regard to 
owner occupation.  Debra Yost confirmed if the owner lived in the property, it became a bed and 
breakfast function, which would need a CUP.    
 
Mr. Menzer moved the application be taken off the table.  Mr. Kemper seconded.  Roll Call 
Vote:  Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Mr. Menzer asked about a homeowner leaving when a house was to be rented; he tried to clarify 
the situation per the intent of Ryan Hottle as the owner of a proposed STR.   
 
Mr. Gill clarified a CUP was needed for a STR or a bed and breakfast, and used the same criteria; 
he stated it was currently not a requirement for an owner to be a resident of Granville. 
 
Ryan Hottle, owner of 228 East Elm Street, resident at 159 West Jeffrey Place, 
Columbus, Ohio, read the letter he sent to “Members of the Council”.   
In regard to his previous statement (on September 14, 2023) about there having been no 
complaints related to any STR’s in the Village, Mr. Gill questioned the source of Mr. Hottle’s 
information.  Ryan Hottle stated who had said it at the September 14, 2023 meeting.  Mr. 
Menzer read from the minutes for the September 14, 2023 BZBA meeting.  
  
Mr. Zimmers asked how the STR would be a “positive contribution to the community”.  Ryan 
Hottle stated he had invested in improvements to the property, landscaped, cleaned gutters and 
done general maintenance, and would continue to maintain the property. 
 
Larry Hottle denied the opportunity to say anything in addition to the letter he submitted. 
 
Bob Johnson, 218 East Elm Street, made a statement about no lack of deterioration of 
neighborhoods where there were Airbnb’s; he believed Ryan Hottle, as owner/operator, was 
working at the highest level of Airbnb; he believed Airbnb’s produced more business for 
communities.  Mr. Zimmers believed Bob Johnson’s statement exemplified the intent of the 
Village of Granville everyday for one’s own home.  Bob Johnson stated the number of STR’s in 
the VRD was well below the maximum number allowed in the district. 
 
Tim Klingler, 202 East Elm Street, asked about the intent of a person applying for a CUP, 
and was an intended 3-year plan for moving into the house specifically part of the BZBA’s 
consideration.  Mr. Gill stated that was yet to be discussed; it was an assertion but not  a 
stipulation.   
 
Keith McWalter, 223 East Elm Street, asked about a limit of STR’s in the VRD.  Mr. Gill 
clarified the limit was 5% of the homes in the district which equated to 15 homes.  Keith 
McWalter described the block, which included a boarding house, a bed and breakfast and a 
potential STR; he asked if it was desired to preserve resident-oriented space close to downtown. 
He referenced Mr. Zimmers’ intent of the purpose, noting the block was over-endowed with short-
term properties. 
 



 

Vee Hottle, 224 East Elm Street, stated she would be the host of the STR if it were allowed, 
and she shared a driveway with 228 East Elm Street.  Mr. Gill stated he heard the concerns about 
density.  Vee Hottle stated Ryan Hottle purchased the house with the intent to move there in 3 
years; it could be a STR or a long-term rental; a STR would be occupied 3-4 days per month but 
corrections could easily be made when unoccupied.  Mr. Gill acknowledged what was assumed 
might not happen.  Vee Hottle compared a STR and a long-term rental in regard to access to the 
house.  Mr. Zimmers acknowledged the home would be empty 2/3 of every month, and a long-
term rental would give stability to the neighborhood and maintain the residential nature.   Vee 
Hottle stated Ryan Hottle came to the house frequently, and often worked remotely from there.  
 
Darryl Tulimieri, 133 South Pearl Street, asked if the BZBA had determined if Ryan Hottle 
met requirements for a STR.  Mr. Gill replied Ryan Hottle had done so.  
 
Bruce Westall was denied coming to the podium per a time issue and no new information to 
share.   
 
Mr. Gill explained the applicant was entitled to apply for a CUP, and the BZBA could allow more 
STR’s if they desired, but asked the board if it was appropriate to determine whether the permit 
would be a good idea.   
 
Mr. Zimmers stated the particular block was being transformed to a STR neighborhood, and 
believed additional STR’s should be owner occupied per the nature of the neighborhood and the 
intent of the purpose clause in the Village Code.  Mr. Zimmers moved the application be denied. 
 
Mr. Menzer saw the purpose clause differently, and explained why he felt the cap was low for 
STR’s.  He believed the residential feel of neighborhoods was being kept low, and added it would 
be difficult to find a better fitting application based on the proximity of the parents, Ryan Hottle 
sometimes living/working there, and the intent to move there in 3 years.  He appreciated the 
concern of density, and wouldn’t want a pocket of town to be an Airbnb street, but didn’t believe 
that was happening; he believed the applicant in regard to moving to Granville.  He would be open 
to putting a time frame on a CUP, and saw the purpose of the Village Code as keeping a low 
number of STR’s.  Mr. Gill gave his opinions on if another such application for the specific block 
of East Elm Street would come to the BZBA.   Mr. Zimmers didn’t think Village Council expected 
there to be 15 empty houses when they put the cap of 15 in the VRD.    
 
Criteria for Approval (1145.03) were reviewed: 
The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall make the following determinations with respect 
to an application for a Conditional Use Permit: 

a. The proposed use is a conditional use within the zoning district and the applicable 
development standards of the Zoning Ordinance are met.  All four (4) stated True, as it 
was discussed at the September 14, 2023 meeting. 

 
(b) The proposed use is in accordance with all current land use and transportation plans for the 
area and is compatible with any existing land use on the same parcel.  Three (3) stated True, one 
(1) stated False. 
 
(c) The proposed use will not create an undue burden on public facilities and services such as 
streets, utilities, schools and refuse disposal.  All four (4) stated True. 
 



 

(d) The proposed use will not be detrimental or disturbing to existing neighboring uses, and will 
not entail a use, structure or condition of operation that constitutes a nuisance or hazard to any 
persons or property.  Two (2) stated True, two (2) stated False. 
 
(e) The proposed use will not significantly diminish or impair established property values within 
the surrounding areas.  Three (3) stated True, one (1) passed. 
 
Mr. Zimmers moved Application #2023-177 be denied.  There was no second so the motion 
died.   Mr. Menzer wanted to put a condition of a time limit on the approval.  Mr. Gill asked Ryan 
Hottle how he would feel about a limit of 3 years before he would need to be residing at 228 East 
Elm Street.  Ryan Hottle refused to agree to the condition.  
 
Mr. Menzer moved Application #2023-177 be approved as presented.  Mr. Kemper 
seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (no) and Gill (yes).  Motion 
carried 3-1.  Mr. Gill noted it was approved without a “sunset clause”. 
 
New Business: 

 
a. Application #2023-192, submitted by Marjorie Hickey, property owner, for the 

property located at 211 South Main Street.  The request is for review and approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the property to be utilized as a short-term rental.  The 
property is zoned Village Residential District (VRD), and is located within the 
Architectural Review Overlay District (AROD). 

 
Mr. Gill swore in Margie Hickey, Graham Hickey, Hunter Prendergast, Brian Hennis, Jenn Rubal 
and Debra Yost.    
 
Discussion:  
Marjorie Hickey, 211 South Main Street, asked for a CUP for a STR; she recently tried to sell 
the property, but said most people interested in buying the property wanted to buy it as an 
investment property.  She noted a carriage house was in the rear, and only the house would be a 
STR.  Mr. Gill acknowledged variances were violated previously by her, and wondered if she 
should be given a CUP if the agreement was not kept earlier.  Margie Hickey defended the 
change she made in the agreement about no shower or bath in the carriage house, as she did it per 
the contractor’s suggestion; she didn’t intentionally violate the previous variance.  Mr. Gill didn’t 
see the BZBA allowing a CUP as a result of her past.  Margie Hickey agreed to have a plumber 
block off the plumbing which hadn’t been allowed, and stated she would not be renting the rear 
structure (carriage house).  She had built a house in Glenshire, and her sons would continue to 
live in the house, not in the carriage house.  Regarding having had the house (211 South Main 
Street) for sale, she stated she decided to keep the house and not sell it; the contract was ended. 
 
Mr. Menzer confirmed she wanted to use the house as a STR while her sons were in 
school.  Margie Hickey defended why she wanted her sons to live in the house, and defended 
the upstairs plumbing.  Mr. Menzer asked about a future owner who might un-cap the shower and 
have an un-licensed bed and breakfast.  Mr. Gill confirmed the BZBA was reviewing a CUP for the 
front house, not the rear house, and the sons would be the current host managers.   
 
Hunter Prendergast, 124 West Maple Street, asked if Ms. Hickey’s intent was to do the STR 
temporarily or in perpetuity.  Debra Yost stated the applicant had one (1) year to begin the 
conditional use, which would expire if the conditional use were to be discontinued for more than 
two (2) years.  If a new person bought the property [before a 2-year abandonment], the 



 

conditional use would continue.  Hunter Prendergast asked again if it was to be a STR 
temporarily or in perpetuity.  Mr. Gill stated it was a moot point as there was nothing illegal 
concerned.  Hunter Prendergast opposed multiple STR’s in Granville, and would prefer the 
applicant not receive a CUP to be a STR, as he lived immediately adjacent.  If the permit was 
granted, he expected the neighborhood to lose personality.   
 
Brian Hennis, 128 West Maple Street, described the organization he was a part of; he quoted 
“STR’s carry an economic benefit to travelers” and improve the area where they are located; he 
believed the cost of homes had increased so many could not afford them since investors were 
buying them; he gave the example of two (2) businesses on Main Street that had recently moved 
and were bought by out-of-state investors (referring to Doug and Becky Wagner’s veterinary-
related properties); he referenced an article about STR’s bringing additional crime; he stated there 
was some risk in town during the 4th of July festivities, but he felt safe; he frowned upon bringing 
more STR’s to the community because of unoccupied spaces, and people coming who were not 
part of the community; he opposed granting the CUP for 211 South Main Street. 
 
Hunter Prendergast presented a few more studies about the saturation of STR’s within a 
neighborhood pertaining to land value, adding nuisance issues and the pressure on infrastructure 
(solid waste).   
 
Marjorie Hickey stated, regarding businesses that had moved, she met the new owner, a 
Granville resident (not out of state) who was using the businesses for Denison University 
students.  She gave examples of people who would be coming to her home, and assured it would 
not be a party house; she would be working outside at her house daily, and would not allow it to 
deteriorate.  Mr. Gill mentioned the anticipatory anxiety about trends, which was not a basis for 
granting or denying the request.   
 
Mr. Menzer stated he was sympathetic of too many STR’s and stories/situations; his concern was 
the investor who didn’t have a connection to Granville and wanted to use the house in a way unlike 
Granville; he asked Margie Hickey if she would be ok to have capping the shower head as a 
condition.   Margie Hickey responded, “Yes”.  Mr. Menzer stated he was considering asking that 
the CUP be just for her use and her ownership.  Mr. Zimmers stated he was not allowed to do 
that.  Debra Yost stated the CUP stayed with the property.  Mr. Kemper didn’t wanted to have 
the carriage house used for any residence.  Debra Yost stated an accessory structure was not to 
be used as a residence.  Mr. Gill stated he wouldn’t recommend that because it couldn’t be 
enforced; all that could be said was to take the shower out.  Mr. Zimmers noted Ryan Hottle 
refused to concede to the condition proposed, and noted concern with where things were going 
with Airbnb’s; if a property were sold, Granville would be stuck with whoever bought the 
property.   
 
Brian Hennis admitted misidentifying who bought the previously mentioned properties on 
Main Street.  Marjorie Hickey had been correct. 
 
Criteria for Approval (1145.03) was reviewed: 
The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall make the following determinations with respect 
to an application for a Conditional Use Permit: 

a. The proposed use is a conditional use within the zoning district and the applicable 
development standards of this Zoning Ordinance are met.  All four (4) stated True. 

 



 

(b) The proposed use is in accordance with all current land use and transportation plans        for 
the area and is compatible with any existing land use on the same parcel.  All four (4) stated 
True. 
 
(c) The proposed use will not create an undue burden on public facilities and services such as 
streets, utilities, schools and refuse disposal.  All four (4) stated True, but the continued addition 
of STR’s could cause a problem. 
 
(d) The proposed use will not be detrimental or disturbing to existing neighboring uses, and will 
not entail a use, structure or condition of operation that constitutes a nuisance or hazard to any 
persons or property.  Three (3) stated True, one (1) stated False. 
 
(e) The proposed use will not significantly diminish or impair established property values within 
the surrounding areas.  All four (4) stated True. 
 
Mr. Kemper moved Application #2023-192 be approved as submitted, with the condition the 
capping of the shower in the carriage house be rectified.  Mr. Menzer seconded.   Mr. Zimmers 
reiterated that the Village was going in the wrong direction, and saw a lack of control regarding 
residences which would become businesses.   Mr. Gill stated he would be in favor of STR’s for 
resident-owned properties.  Mr. Zimmers stated Village Council’s purpose was to maintain the 
residential neighborhood.  Mr. Menzer noted there needed to be certain layers of trust as stated 
by Tim Klingler at the September 14, 2023 meeting.  Mr. Gill stated he felt permits should 
diminish.  Roll Call Vote:  Menzer (yes), Zimmers (no), Kemper (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion 
carried 3-1. 
 
b)    Application #2023-193, submitted by Madelyn’s, for the property located at 119 East Elm 
Street.  The request is for review and approval of a variance to increase the number of permitted 
canopy signs on a zoned lot.  The property is zoned Village Business District (VBD), and is located 
within the Architectural Review Overlay District (AROD). 
 
Mr. Gill swore in Roger Kessler, Jenn Rubal and Debra Yost.    
 
Discussion:  
Roger Kessler, 170 Pinehurst Drive, representing the applicant, requested  installation of 
another awning with “Madelyn’s” on it.   
 
Mr. Menzer surmised it was only one (1) more sign, totaling four (4) plus an awning with only an 
address on it.   
 
Mr. Menzer moved the application be considered by acclamation.  Mr. Kemper seconded.  Roll 
Call Vote:  Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 

 
Mr. Menzer moved Application #2023-193 be approved.  Mr. Kemper seconded.   Roll Call 
Vote:  Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Mr. Gill noted the anxiety about STR’s, and stated the BZBA needed to signal to Village Council 
about the density and limitation of STR’s.  Mr. Zimmers assured “we” need to know the intent and 
purpose of people applying for such CUP’s.   
 
Findings of Fact Approval:  



 

a).    Application #2023-177; 228 East Elm Street; Sarah Straley and Ryan Hottle; 
Conditional Use Permit.  Mr. Menzer moved the Findings of Fact for Application #2023-177 
be approved.  Mr. Kemper seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer 
(yes), and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
b).  Application #2023-192; 221 South Main Street; Marjorie Hickey; Conditional 
Use Permit. Mr. Kemper moved the Findings of Fact for Application #2023-192 be 
approved.  Mr. Menzer seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes) 
and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
c).    Application #2023-193; 119 East Elm Street; Madelyn’s; Canopy Sign Variance. 
Mr. Menzer moved the Findings of Fact for Application #2023-193 be approved.  Mr. Kemper 
seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion 
carried 4-0. 
  
Review and approval of minutes from September 14, 2023 BZBA meeting:  Mr. 
Zimmers moved the minutes from the September 14, 2023 BZBA meeting be approved.  Mr. 
Menzer seconded.  Roll Call Vote: Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes) and Gill 
(yes).  Motion carried 4-0.  
 
Motion to excuse a member’s absence:  Mr. Zimmers moved the absence of Mr. Burge from 
the October 12, 2023 BZBA meeting be excused.  Mr. Menzer seconded.  Role Call Vote:  Zimmers 
(yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Other Board/Law Director/Staff Matters: 
Debra Yost reported: 

• Anticipated the Mill District final site plan at the November 9, 2023 meeting 
 
Meeting Announcements: 
November 9, 2023 
December 14, 2023 
January 11, 2024 
 
Adjournment: 
Mr. Kemper moved the meeting be adjourned. Mr. Menzer seconded.  Mr. Gill adjourned the 
meeting at  7:34pm.  
 
 
 
_________________________                                    _________________ 
Chairman, Jeff Gill                                                                Date Approved 
 
Submitted by: Debra Yost and Cathy Klingler 
 





































1 
 

Granville Board of Zoning & Building Appeals 
Minutes for Meeting  

Amended  
October 12, 2023 

 5:30 p.m. 
 
 

 
Call to Order:  Mr. Gill called the meeting to order at 5:30p.m.  
 
Members Present:  Mr. Gill, Mr. Menzer, Mr. Kemper and Mr. Zimmers 
 
Member Absent:  Mr. Burge 
 
Staff Members Present: Debra Yost, Long Range Planner; Jenn Rubal, Zoning Administrator; 
Herb Koehler, Village Manager 
 
Also present were:  Graham Hickey, Ryan Hottle, Vee Hottle, Larry Hottle, Sarah Straley, Tim 
Klingler, Margie Hickey, Courtney McWalter, Keith McWalter, Bruce Westall, Bob Johnson, 
Charles Williams, Brian Hennis, Hunter Prendergast and Daryl Tulimieri. 
 
Citizen comments:  none 
 
In the discussions regarding Applications #2023-177 and #2023-192, CUP stands 
for Conditional Use Permit, STR stands for Short-Term Rental, and VRD stands for 
Village Residential District. 
 
Old Business: 
 
a).    Application #2023-177, submitted by Sarah Straley and Ryan Hottle, property owners, 
for the property located at 228 East Elm Street.  The request is for review and approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the property to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental.  The property 
is zoned Village Residential District (VRD), and is located within the Architectural Review Overlay 
District (AROD). 
 
Mr. Gill swore in Ryan Hottle, Vee Hottle, Tim Klingler, Keith McWalter, Bruce Westall, Bob 
Johnson, Brian Hennis, Hunter Prendergast, Daryl Tulimieri, Debra Yost and Jenn Rubal. 
 
Discussion: 
Mr. Gill noted the exhibits:  a letter from Ryan Hottle, a letter from Larry and Vee Hottle, a 
memorandum from Neal Zimmers and Jenn Rubal’s map illustrating the known STR’s within the 
Village Residential District (VRD). 
 
Mr. Zimmers stated he was concerned there are too many Airbnb’s in the VRD and that he had 
seen a Denison listing of available STR’s in the VRD which showed many more than appeared on 
the map. He pointed out one on North Pearl St. around the corner from Broadway.  Jenn Rubal 
stated the one he referred to was located within the Village Business District (VBD). 
 
 
Mr. Zimmers stated his view on the issue and submitted his memorandum as an exhibit for the 
record.  



2 
 

 
Mr. Menzer explained the difference between an Airbnb and a bed and breakfast with regard to 
owner occupation.  Debra Yost confirmed if the owner lived in the property, it became a bed and 
breakfast function, which would also necessitate a CUP.    
 
Mr. Menzer moved the application be taken off the table.  Mr. Kemper seconded.  Roll Call 
Vote:  Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Mr. Menzer asked about a homeowner leaving when a house was to be rented; he tried to clarify 
the situation per the intent of Ryan Hottle as the owner of a proposed STR.   
 
Mr. Gill clarified a CUP was needed for a STR or a bed and breakfast, and used the same criteria; 
he stated it was currently not a requirement for an owner to be a resident of Granville. 
 
Ryan Hottle, owner of 228 East Elm Street, resident at 159 West Jeffrey Place, 
Columbus, Ohio, read the letter he sent to “Members of the Council”.   
In regard to his previous statement (on September 14, 2023) about there having been no 
complaints related to any STR’s in the Village, Mr. Gill questioned the source of Mr. Hottle’s 
information.  Ryan Hottle stated who had said it at the September 14, 2023 meeting.  Mr. 
Menzer read from the minutes for the September 14, 2023 BZBA meeting.  
  
Mr. Zimmers questioned how a mostly vacant STR property could be construed as a positive 
contribution to the neighborhood as Mr. Hottle had asserted. Ryan Hottle stated he had 
invested in improvements to the property, landscaped, cleaned gutters and done general 
maintenance, and would continue to maintain the property. 
 
Larry Hottle was asked if he had anything to add beyond the letter he submitted. He stated that 
he did not. 
 
Bob Johnson, 218 East Elm Street, made a statement about no lack of deterioration of 
neighborhoods where there were Airbnb’s; he believed Ryan Hottle, as owner/operator, was 
working at the highest level of Airbnb; he believed Airbnb’s produced more business for 
communities.  Bob Johnson stated the number of STR’s in the VRD was well below the 
maximum number allowed in the district. 
 
Tim Klingler, 202 East Elm Street, asked about the intent of a person applying for a CUP, 
and if the intended 3-year plan for moving into the house specifically part of the BZBA’s 
consideration.  Mr. Gill stated that was yet to be discussed; it was an assertion but not a 
stipulation.   
 
Keith McWalter, 223 East Elm Street, asked about a limit of STR’s in the VRD.  Mr. Gill 
clarified the limit was 5% of the homes in the district which equated to 15 homes.  Keith 
McWalter described the block, which included the boarding house (apartments at 203 East Elm 
Street), a bed and breakfast and the potential STR; he asked if it was desired to preserve resident-
oriented space close to downtown. He referenced Mr. Zimmers’ statement on the intent of the 
Purpose Clause of the Village Ordinance, noting the block was over-endowed with short-term 
properties. 
 
Vee Hottle, 224 East Elm Street, stated she would be the host of the STR if it were allowed, 
and she shared a driveway with 228 East Elm Street.  Mr. Gill stated he heard the concerns about 
density.  Vee Hottle stated Ryan Hottle purchased the house with the intent to move there in 3 



3 
 

years; it could be a STR or a long-term rental; a STR would be occupied 3-4 days per month but 
corrections could easily be made when unoccupied.  Mr. Gill acknowledged what was assumed 
might not happen.  Vee Hottle compared a STR and a long-term rental in regard to access to the 
house.  Mr. Zimmers said the home would be empty 2/3 of every month, and a long-term rental 
would give more stability to the neighborhood and maintain the residential nature.   Vee Hottle 
stated Ryan Hottle has come to the house frequently, and has worked remotely from there.  
 
Darryl Tulimieri, 133 South Pearl Street, asked if the BZBA had determined if Ryan Hottle 
met requirements for a STR.  Mr. Gill replied Ryan Hottle had done so, per review by Village Legal 
Counsel.  
 
Bruce Westall raised his hand after panel discussion. He was asked by Mr. Gill if he had any 
new information to add, to which he said he might be able to add a new perspective. Mr. Gill noted 
perspectives were being considered for forty-five minutes, and the Board should focus on any new 
substantive input. Mr. Westall waved back at the chair from his seat, and the discussion of the 
panel continued.   
 
Mr. Gill stated the applicant met the qualifications to apply for a Conditional Use Permit, and that 
a closer look following a variety of statements made at the previous BZBA meeting, it was clear 
that the BZBA could allow more Short-Term Rentals within the Village Residential District, and 
in fact, there were only four permitted STR’s in the Village Residential District. He stated the 
questions remaining for the Board was how to consider the criteria in light of whether or not the 
particular STR in this location is a good idea or not.   
 
Mr. Zimmers stated the particular block was being transformed to a STR neighborhood, and 
believed any additional STR’s should be owner occupied per the nature of the neighborhood and 
the intent of the Purpose Clause in the Village Code.  Mr. Zimmers moved the application be 
denied. 
 
Mr. Menzer saw the purpose clause differently, and explained that he felt the cap for STRs was set 
intentionally, and appropriately, low by Village Council.  He believed the residential feel of 
neighborhoods was being supported by the low STR cap, and added it would be difficult to find a 
better fitting application based on the proximity of the parents, Ryan Hottle sometimes 
living/working there, and the intent to move there in 3 years.  He appreciated the concern of 
density, and wouldn’t want a pocket of town to be an Airbnb street, but didn’t believe that was 
happening; he believed the applicant in regard to moving to Granville.  He would be open to 
putting a time frame on a CUP, and saw the purpose of the Village Code as keeping a low number 
of STR’s.  Mr. Gill gave his opinions on if another such application for the specific block of East 
Elm Street would come to the BZBA.   Mr. Zimmers didn’t think Village Council expected there to 
be 15 empty houses when they put the cap of 15 in the VRD.    
 
Criteria for Approval (1145.03) were reviewed: 
The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall make the following determinations with respect 
to an application for a Conditional Use Permit: 

a. The proposed use is a Conditional Use within the zoning district and the applicable 
development standards of the Zoning Ordinance are met.  All four (4) stated True, as it 
was discussed at the September 14, 2023 meeting. 

 
(b) The proposed use is in accordance with all current land use and transportation plans for the 
area and is compatible with any existing land use on the same parcel.  Three (3) stated True, one 
(1) stated False. 



4 
 

 
(c) The proposed use will not create an undue burden on public facilities and services such as 
streets, utilities, schools and refuse disposal.  All four (4) stated True. 
 
(d) The proposed use will not be detrimental or disturbing to existing neighboring uses, and will 
not entail a use, structure or condition of operation that constitutes a nuisance or hazard to any 
persons or property.  Two (2) stated True, two (2) stated False. 
 
(e) The proposed use will not significantly diminish or impair established property values within 
the surrounding areas.  Three (3) stated True, one (1) passed. 
 
Mr. Zimmers moved Application #2023-177 be denied.  There was no second so the motion 
died.   Mr. Menzer wanted to put a condition of a time limit on the approval.  Mr. Gill asked Ryan 
Hottle how he would feel about a limit of 3 years before he would need to be residing at 228 East 
Elm Street.  Ryan Hottle said he would not support the condition.  
 
Mr. Menzer moved Application #2023-177 be approved as presented.  Mr. Kemper 
seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (no) and Gill (yes).  Motion 
carried 3-1.  Mr. Gill noted it was approved without a “sunset clause”. 
 
New Business: 

 
a. Application #2023-192, submitted by Marjorie Hickey, property owner, for the 

property located at 211 South Main Street.  The request is for review and approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the property to be utilized as a Short-Term Rental.  The 
property is zoned Village Residential District (VRD), and is located within the 
Architectural Review Overlay District (AROD). 

 
Mr. Gill swore in Margie Hickey, Graham Hickey, Hunter Prendergast, Brian Hennis, Jenn Rubal 
and Debra Yost.    
 
Discussion:  
Marjorie Hickey, 211 South Main Street, asked for a CUP for a STR; she recently tried to sell 
the property, but said most people interested in buying the property wanted to buy it as an 
investment property.  She noted a Carriage House was in the rear, and only the house would be a 
STR.  Mr. Gill noted there would be questions about granting the applicant a CUP given previous 
violations of stated restrictions and guidelines from the BZBA. There was discussion of how 
previously granted qualifications had been over-stepped, and remedial action to be taken if the 
current application would be approved. Margie Hickey defended the change she made in the 
agreement about no shower or bath in the Carriage House, as she did it per the contractor’s 
suggestion; she didn’t intentionally violate the previous conditions of her earlier variance.  Mr. 
Gill didn’t see the BZBA allowing a CUP as a result of her past.  Margie Hickey agreed to have a 
plumber block off the plumbing which hadn’t been allowed, and stated she would not be renting 
the rear structure (Carriage House).  She had built a house in Glenshire, and her sons would 
continue to live in the house (at 211 South Main Street), not in the Carriage House.  Regarding 
having had the house (211 South Main Street) for sale, she stated she decided to keep the house 
and not sell it; the contract was ended. She said she wanted to keep it as an investment 
property and felt the income from the proposed STR would make it work. 
 
Mr. Menzer confirmed she wanted to use the house as a STR while her sons were in 
school.  Margie Hickey defended why she wanted her sons to live in the house, and defended 



5 
 

the plumbing installed in the Carriage House.  Mr. Menzer asked about a future owner who might 
un-cap the shower and have an un-licensed bed and breakfast.  Mr. Gill confirmed the BZBA was 
reviewing a CUP for the front house, not the Carriage House.   
 
Hunter Prendergast, 124 West Maple Street, asked if Ms. Hickey’s intent was to do the STR 
temporarily or in perpetuity.  Debra Yost stated the applicant had one (1) year to begin the 
conditional use, which would expire if the Conditional Use were to be discontinued for more than 
two (2) years.  If a new person bought the property [before a 2-year abandonment], the 
Conditional Use would continue (and run with the property) but the new owner must reapply for 
a STR.  Hunter Prendergast asked again if it was to be a STR temporarily or in perpetuity.  Mr. 
Gill responded that it would be in perpetuity unless a condition was imposed.  Hunter 
Prendergast opposed multiple STR’s in Granville, and would prefer the applicant not receive a 
CUP to be a STR, as he lived immediately adjacent.  If the permit was granted, he expected the 
neighborhood to lose personality.   
 
Brian Hennis, 128 West Maple Street, described the organization he was a part of; he quoted 
an article from which claimed STRs are a benefit to travelers, but not to the community in which 
they are located; he believed the cost of homes had increased; he gave the example of two (2) 
businesses on Main Street that had recently moved and were bought by out-of-state investors 
(referring to Doug and Becky Wagner’s veterinary-related properties); he referenced an article 
about STR’s bringing additional crime; he stated there was some risk in town during the 4th of 
July festivities, but he felt safe; he frowned upon bringing more STR’s to the community because 
of unoccupied spaces, and people coming who were not part of the community; he opposed 
granting the CUP for 211 South Main Street. 
 
Hunter Prendergast presented a few more studies about the saturation of STR’s within a 
neighborhood pertaining to land value, adding nuisance issues and the pressure on the Village’s 
infrastructure.   
 
Marjorie Hickey stated, regarding businesses that had moved (again, referring to the properties 
previously owned by Doug and Becky Wagner), she met the new owner, a Granville resident (not 
out of state) who was using the businesses for Denison University students.  She assured it would 
not be a party house; she resides locally and would not allow the property to deteriorate.  Mr. Gill 
mentioned the anticipatory anxiety about trends, which was not a basis for granting or denying 
the request.   
 
Mr. Menzer stated he was sympathetic of too many STR’s and stories/situations; his concern was 
the investor who didn’t have a connection to Granville and wanted to use the house in a way unlike 
Granville; he asked Margie Hickey if she would be ok to have capping the shower head as a 
condition.   Margie Hickey responded, “Yes”.  Mr. Menzer stated he was considering asking that 
the CUP be just for her use and her ownership.  Mr. Zimmers stated we were not allowed to do 
that.  Debra Yost stated the CUP stayed with the property.  Mr. Kemper didn’t want to have the 
Carriage House used for any residence.  Debra Yost stated an accessory structure was not to be 
used as a residence.  Mr. Gill stated he wouldn’t recommend that because it couldn’t be enforced; 
all that could be said was to take the shower out.  Mr. Zimmers noted Ryan Hottle refused to 
concede to a proposed condition, and noted concern with where things were going with Airbnb’s; 
if a property were sold, Granville would be stuck with whoever bought the property.   
 
Brian Hennis admitted misidentifying who bought the previously mentioned properties on 
Main Street.  Marjorie Hickey had been correct. 
 



6 
 

Criteria for Approval (1145.03) was reviewed: 
The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall make the following determinations with respect 
to an application for a Conditional Use Permit: 

a. The proposed use is a Conditional Use within the zoning district and the applicable 
development standards of this Zoning Ordinance are met.  All four (4) stated True. 

 
(b) The proposed use is in accordance with all current land use and transportation plans        for 
the area and is compatible with any existing land use on the same parcel.  All four (4) stated 
True. 
 
(c) The proposed use will not create an undue burden on public facilities and services such as 
streets, utilities, schools and refuse disposal.  All four (4) stated True, but the continued addition 
of STR’s could cause a problem. 
 
(d) The proposed use will not be detrimental or disturbing to existing neighboring uses, and will 
not entail a use, structure or condition of operation that constitutes a nuisance or hazard to any 
persons or property.  Three (3) stated True, one (1) stated False. 
 
(e) The proposed use will not significantly diminish or impair established property values within 
the surrounding areas.  All four (4) stated True. 
 
Mr. Kemper moved Application #2023-192 be approved as submitted, with the condition the 
capping of the shower in the Carriage House be rectified.  Mr. Menzer seconded.   Mr. Zimmers 
reiterated that the Village was going in the wrong direction, and saw a lack of control regarding 
residences which would become businesses.   Mr. Gill stated he would be in favor of STR’s for 
resident-owned properties.  Mr. Zimmers stated Village Council’s purpose of the Ordinance’s 
restrictions was to maintain the residential character of the neighborhoods.  Mr. Menzer noted 
there needed to be certain layers of trust as stated by Tim Klingler at the September 14, 2023 
meeting.  Mr. Gill added that further permits might be granted, but could not foresee the fifteen 
allowed under the ordinance being granted, given the general community feelings as they have 
been expressed thus far.  Roll Call Vote:  Menzer (yes), Zimmers (no), Kemper (yes) and Gill 
(yes).  Motion carried 3-1. 
 
b)    Application #2023-193, submitted by Madelyn’s, for the property located at 119 East Elm 
Street.  The request is for review and approval of a variance to increase the number of permitted 
canopy signs on a zoned lot.  The property is zoned Village Business District (VBD), and is located 
within the Architectural Review Overlay District (AROD). 
 
Mr. Gill swore in Rodger Kessler, Jenn Rubal and Debra Yost.    
 
Discussion:  
Rodger Kessler, 170 Pinehurst Drive, representing the applicant, requested installation of 
another awning with “Madelyn’s” on it.   
 
Mr. Menzer surmised it was only one (1) more sign, totaling four (4) plus an awning with only an 
address on it.   
 
Mr. Menzer moved the application be considered by acclamation.  Mr. Kemper seconded.  Roll 
Call Vote:  Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 

 



7 
 

Mr. Menzer moved Application #2023-193 be approved.  Mr. Kemper seconded.   Roll Call 
Vote:  Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Mr. Gill noted the anxiety about STR’s, and stated the BZBA needed to signal to Village Council 
about the density and limitation of STR’s.  Mr. Zimmers assured “we” need to know the intent and 
purpose of people applying for such CUP’s.   
 
Findings of Fact Approval:  
a).    Application #2023-177; 228 East Elm Street; Sarah Straley and Ryan Hottle; 
Conditional Use Permit.  Mr. Menzer moved the Findings of Fact for Application #2023-177 
be approved.  Mr. Kemper seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer 
(yes), and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
b).  Application #2023-192; 221 South Main Street; Marjorie Hickey; Conditional 
Use Permit. Mr. Kemper moved the Findings of Fact for Application #2023-192 be 
approved.  Mr. Menzer seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes) 
and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
c).    Application #2023-193; 119 East Elm Street; Madelyn’s; Canopy Sign Variance. 
Mr. Menzer moved the Findings of Fact for Application #2023-193 be approved.  Mr. Kemper 
seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes), Kemper (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion 
carried 4-0. 
  
Review and approval of minutes from September 14, 2023 BZBA meeting:  Mr. 
Zimmers moved the minutes from the September 14, 2023 BZBA meeting be approved.  Mr. 
Menzer seconded.  Roll Call Vote: Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes), Zimmers (yes) and Gill 
(yes).  Motion carried 4-0.  
 
Motion to excuse a member’s absence:  Mr. Zimmers moved the absence of Mr. Burge from 
the October 12, 2023 BZBA meeting be excused.  Mr. Menzer seconded.  Roll Call Vote:  Zimmers 
(yes), Kemper (yes), Menzer (yes) and Gill (yes).  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Other Board/Law Director/Staff Matters: 
Debra Yost reported: 

• Anticipated the Mill District final site plan at the November 9, 2023 meeting 
 
Meeting Announcements: 
November 9, 2023 
December 14, 2023 
January 11, 2024 
 
Adjournment: 
Mr. Kemper moved the meeting be adjourned. Mr. Menzer seconded.  Mr. Gill adjourned the 
meeting at 7:34pm.  
 
 
 
_________________________                                    _________________ 
Chairman, Jeff Gill                                                                Date Approved 
 
Submitted by: Debra Yost, Jenn Rubal and Cathy Klingler with amendments provided by Board 
Members Mr. Gill, Mr. Menzer, and Mr. Zimmers 
 

Mobile User











From: Jennifer Rubal <jrubal@granville.oh.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 10, 2023 1:21 PM 
To: 'Jeff Gill' <knapsack@windstream.net>; 'yaak@roadrunner.com' 
<yaak@roadrunner.com>; 'Neal Zimmers' <nz@zimmers-law.com>; 'Drew Menzer' 
<drewthemenzer@gmail.com>; 'kemperken1947@gmail.com' 
<kemperken1947@gmail.com> 
Cc: Debi Walker Yost <dwalkeryost@granville.oh.us> 
Subject: FW: BZBA Packet for Thursday 10/12 
  
Hi all, 
  
Attached is a copy of the Short-Term Rental Chapter 1182, there are some mark ups 
with key words and phrases that we think pertain most to Application #2023-177 that 
was tabled last month. 
  

To provide clarity on the ownership/residency questions, please note 
below that the Village Residential District has no specific provisions 
related to where the owner resides. 
  
(b) Village Residential District 

(1) Short-term rental operation is a Conditional Use in the Village Residential District, and subject to the 
provisions of Chapter 1145 of the Planning and Zoning Code in addition to the provisions of this chapter. 

(2) A short-term rental property in the Village Residential District shall have a short-term rental host 
whose primary residence is located in the Village of Granville or Granville Township. 
  
(3) A short-term rental operation in the Village Residential District shall not be configured so as to 
convert a conforming single-family dwelling into a non-conforming two-family or multi-family dwelling. 
  
(4) Subject to the grandfathering/phase-in provisions of this chapter, the number of short-term rental 
properties in the Village Residential District shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the total number of 
residential properties in the Village Residential District. 

  
  
  

To further help us understand the roles associated with Short Term 
Rentals, we offer the following: 
  
1182.03(b)(2) states “A short term rental property in the Village Residential District shall 
have a short-term rental host whose primary residence is located within the Village of 
Granville or Granville Township.” In this case, one could view Vee and Larry Hottle as 
the Short-Term Rental Host. 
  
1182.02(s) defines Short-term rental host as “the owner, operator or permanent 
occupant of a short-term rental who offers the short-term rental for temporary lodging, 
for a fee, for less than 30 consecutive days and manages its operation.” Although Vee 

mailto:jrubal@granville.oh.us
mailto:knapsack@windstream.net
mailto:yaak@roadrunner.com
mailto:yaak@roadrunner.com
mailto:nz@zimmers-law.com
mailto:drewthemenzer@gmail.com
mailto:kemperken1947@gmail.com
mailto:kemperken1947@gmail.com
mailto:dwalkeryost@granville.oh.us


and Larry are not the owners of the property, one could classify them as 
the operators of the Short-Term Rental. 
  
Lastly, 1182.02(m) defines Operator, as “any natural person who operates a short-term 
rental in a capacity to facilitate the offering of guest rooms to guests.” One might view 
Vee and Larry as Operators of the Short-Term Rental. 
  
  
  
Also, a gentle reminder from our Law Director, it is important that the Board make 
determination on the Criteria of 1145 Conditional Uses only, and understand that the 
contents of the Short-Term Rental Application will be further reviewed administratively 
by the Planning Staff. Remember that the Conditional Use Permit allows the applicant to 
submit a Short-Term Rental Application. Staff will perform additional in-depth reviews 
based on the applications information prior to granting the Short-Term Rental Permit.   
  
See you on Thursday! 
Jenn 
  
 



BY:    
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AWARD THE BID FOR THE BRYN DU BARN RENOVATION 

PROJECT TO ROBERTSON CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC AND TO 
AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT 

THERETO  
 
 WHEREAS, bids were received for the Bryn Du Barn Rehabilitation Project 
on December 22, 2023, and 
 

WHEREAS, Northpoint Ohio Architecture has reviewed the one bid received and 
has recommended that the contract for the Bryn Du Barn Rehabilitation Project be 
awarded to Robertson Construction Services, Inc. as the lowest and best bidder.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF GRANVILLE, 
OHIO that: 
 
 
Section I:  The bid award for the Bryn Du Barn Rehabilitation Project, as per 

specifications, be awarded to Robertson Construction Services, Inc. for 
a total contract price of $1,514,000.00 

 
Section II: The Village Manager is hereby authorized on behalf of the Village of 

Granville to enter into a contract with Roberrtson Construction 
Services, Inc. for the Bryn Du Barn Rehabilitation Project.  

 
Section III: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage.  
 
Passed this 3rd day of January, 2024.  
 
 
     ______________________________ 
     Mayor, Melissa Hartfield 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________   
Autumn Klein, Clerk of Council 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
William Mattes, Law Director 



By:   

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO ADVERTISE 
FOR BIDS FOR VARIOUS VILLAGE PROJECTS AND ITEMS THROUGHOUT 

THE YEAR 2024 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Granville has various projects throughout the year that 
require a bid process; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Village Manager requests the authority to seek bids for projects 
listed below, as needed; and 
 

WHEREAS, all projects listed below were approved by Council as part of the 
2024 budget process; and 
 

WHEREAS, Village Council will review and approve the awarding of all contracts 
for any projected listed below that are bid.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Granville, Ohio 
that: 
 
Section I: The Village Manager is hereby authorized on behalf of the Village of 

Granville to advertise for bids, consistent with the laws of the State of 
Ohio, during the year 2024 for the following projects: 

  
  Street Improvement Projects (Paving & Concrete Repairs) 
  Lime Chemicals 
  Sludge Hauling 
  Lime Sludge Storage Building 
  Weaver Dr/River Rd Pedestrian Path  

Thornwood Crossing Pedestrian Path Connector 
Wet Well Lining at Erinwood    

 
Section II: This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after the date 

of its passage, the earliest period allowed by law.  
 
 
Passed this 3rd day of January, 2024. 
 
 
 
     

 ____________________________________ 
    Melissa Hartfield, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Autumn Klein, Clerk of Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
William Mattes, Law Director 



BY:   

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 

 
A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, 

COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO 
THE CHARTER OF THE VILLAGE OF GRANVILLE AND THE OHIO 

REVISED CODE 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 2.08 of the Charter of the Village of Granville bestows 
upon Village Council the responsibility to appoint the members of all boards and 
commissions created by or pursuant to the Charter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2.11 of the Charter of the Village of Granville authorizes 
Village Council to establish such ad hoc and standing committees of Council as it 
deems necessary and advisable, and to appoint the members thereof; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to these Charter provisions, currently established 
boards, commissions and committees include the Planning Commission; the Board 
of Zoning and Building Appeals; the Bryn Du Commission; the Granville Arts 
Commission; the Tree & Landscape Commission; Environmental Sustainability 
Committee the Planning & Zoning Committee; the Economic, Finance & Personnel 
Committee; and the Lights, Safety, Streets & Utilities Committee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in addition, various sections of the Ohio Revised Code bestow 
upon Village Council the responsibility to appoint representatives to broader boards, 
commissions and committees; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to these Revised Code sections, these broader boards, 
commissions and committees include the Granville Foundation; the Union Cemetery 
Board; the Open Space Committee; and the Granville Recreation District; Granville 
Education Foundation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council is greatly assisted in making these important 
appointments by the efforts of the Village Manager, staff and residents in identifying, 
screening, interviewing and recommending qualified and dedicated volunteers from 
the Granville community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council of the Village of Granville, Ohio, 
that: 
 
Section   I: To the Granville Planning Commission, Council hereby appoints to a 

term expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section II: To the Bryn Du Commission, Council hereby appoints to a term 
expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section III: To the Granville Arts Commission, Council hereby appoints to a term 
expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section IV: To the Tree & Landscape Commission, Council hereby appoints to a 
term expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section V: To the Planning & Zoning Committee, Council hereby appoints terms 
to expire on December 31, 2025. 

Section VI: To the Economic, Finance & Personnel Committee, Council hereby 
appoints terms expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section VII: To the Lights, Safety, Streets & Utilities Committee, Council hereby 
appoints to terms expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section VIII: To the Granville Community Foundation, Council hereby appoints to a 
term expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section IX: To the Union Cemetery Board, Council hereby appoints to a term 
expiring on December 31, 2025. 



Section X: To the Open Space Committee, Council hereby appoints to a term 
expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section XI: To the Environmental Sustainability Committee, Council hereby 
appoints to a term expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section XII: To the Granville Recreation District, Council hereby appoints to a term 
expiring on December 31, 2025. 

Section XIII: To the Granville Education Foundation, Council hereby appoints to a 
term expiring on December 31, 2025. 

 
This Resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon passage. 
 
Passed this 3rd day of January, 2024. 
 
             
      Melissa Hartfield, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

_______________________________ 
Autumn Klein, Clerk of Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

_______________________________ 
William Mattes, Law Director 



BY:   
 

ORDINANCE NO. 01-2024 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE PERMANENT ZONING OF INSTITUTIONAL 
DISTRICT (ID) FOR THE PROPERTY OWNED BY DENISON UNIVERSITY THAT 

IS APPROXIMATELY 31.317 +/- ACRES LOCATED ALONG NEW BURG STREET 
 

WHEREAS, the Village Council, through Ordinance No. 25-2023, accepted 
the annexation of certain real properties totaling approximately 31.317 +/- acres 
located along New Burg Street, owned by Denison University; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property owner, Denison University, has requested the 
property be zoned Institutional District as permanent zoning; and  

 
           WHEREAS, it is recognized that institutions such as a university have special 
needs and land use requirement. Denison University forms an integral part of the 
community and it is the intent of the Institutional District is to provide for the 
protection and whereas necessary, the continued growth of that university and other 
similar institutions, and to protect and enhance compatibility and relationships to 
adjacent uses; it is not to unduly restrict or to discourage the continued vitality of 
Denison University; and 
 
           WHEREAS, specific attention shall be focused on such institutional 
development that may significantly affect traffic or parking activity within the Village; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Granville Planning Commission, after conducting a public 
hearing on the permanent zoning proposal, recommended that property owned by 
Denison University along New Burg Street be zoned Institutional District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Granville Planning Commission believes that the Denison 
University Property along New Burg Street is suitable for the zoning classification of 
Institutional District (ID).  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of Granville, Ohio that: 
 
Section I: Upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission and after a public 
hearing by Village Council, the proposal to rezone the Denison University property 

located along New Burg Street to Institutional District is hereby approved and the 
property is zoned in accordance with Section II of this Ordinance.  
 
Section II: The official zoning map of the Village of Granville, Ohio, is hereby 
amended and revised to designate the permanent zoning classification of 
Institutional District for the property located New Burg Street, owned by Denison 
University. Said property is described on Exhibit A and shown on the map Exhibit B, 
which are attached hereto and made a part hereof.   
 
Section III: The Village Manager is hereby authorized and directed to make this 
change on the zoning map maintained under Section 1155.02 of the Codified 
Ordinances.  
 
Section IV: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect upon the 
earliest date allowed by law. 
 
Passed this 17th day of January, 2024. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          Mayor Melissa Hartfield 
 



ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Autumn Klein, Clerk of Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
William Mattes, Law Director 









1 
 

GRANVILLE VILLAGE COUNCIL 

                                                    Minutes  

December 20, 2023 

7:30 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Hartfield called the Wednesday, December 20th Council meeting to order at 

7:30pm.  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

3. OATH OF OFFICE, COUNCILMEMBER LEITHAUSER 

Law Director Mattes swore in Councilmember elect Joe Leithauser 

4. ELECTION OF MAYOR AND VICE MAYOR 

Councilmember Mickelson nominated Melissa Hartfield to continue to serve as 

Mayor, second by Vice Mayor Johnson 

Motion carried by a vote of 7-0 

Mayor Hartfield thanked other Councilmembers for their support. She stated that she 

has told the community that this is one of the strongest Councils that she can recall 

and she is honored to be a part of it, thankfully we have all these good people in place 

to face what we are facing.   

Councilmember Keethler Ball stated that this past year has been very challenging 

and that she has done a great job leading Council and being a spokesperson for 

Granville in a strong way.   

Law Director Mattes swore in Melissa Hartfield as Mayor.  

Councilmember Olbur nominated Jeremy Johnson to continue to serve as the 

Vice Mayor, second by Councilmember Demarest 

Councilmember Olbur stated that the leadership that Council has in place now 

should continue especially where we are going and he is a great sidekick to what the 

Mayor is doing.   

Law Director Mattes swore in Jeremy Johnson as Vice Mayor.   

Motion carried by a vote of 7-0 



2 
 

5. OATH OF OFFICE OF MAYOR AND VICE MAYOR   

6. ROLL CALL 

Clerk Klein conducted roll call. Those present were Councilmember Demarest, 

Councilmember Keethler Ball, Councilmember Leithauser, Councilmember Mickelson, 

Councilmember Olbur, Vice Mayor Johnson, Mayor Hartfield, Manager Koehler and 

Law Director Mattes 

7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Councilmember Mickelson moved to approve the agenda, second by 

Councilmember Olbur 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

8. CITIZENS COMMENTS  

There were no comments from citizens 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS -7:37pm 

A. ORDINANCE NO. 25-2023 AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING A PETITION FOR 

THE ANNEXATION TO THE VILLAGE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

LOCATED ALONG NEW BURG STREET TOTALING 31.317 +/- ACRES IN 

GRANVILLE TOWNSHIP, OWNED BY DENISON UNIVERSITY 

Manager Koehler shared the slide demonstration the annexation process and 

illustrated that Council is at the last step where they will deliberate on the 

passage of the ordinance and if it does pass after the thirty-day appeal period it 

will then be recorded in the county offices.  

This annexation carries with it a number of provisions, it is anticipated by both 

parties that the property will be developed under the Institutional zoning 

guidelines and while the property would be located within the Institutional District 

and would not be subject to the Village’s Tree Preservation Code the property 

owner, Denison, has agreed to comply with such Code for this project. In terms 

of roadways, within the project area the Village will not be responsible for the 

maintenance or clearing of roadways. The purpose of this project is specifically 

for and limited to housing of staff and faculty members, there shall not be any 

changes in the permitted use unless approved by Council. There is a limit to 

seventy-seven units with the first phase being between twenty-four and thirty 

units. The property owner shall upon approval of the annexation will place the 

property on the tax rolls in Licking County.  



3 
 

In regards to the traffic concerns, as directed by Council staff has held four joint 

meetings with Denison, the school district, the Township and us and then one 

additional meeting separate with one of the representatives for the residents who 

had concerns about the traffic. The District has made a number of changes to 

improve traffic flow and have committed to others after the roundabout is 

complete in 2024. We continue to meet about every other month and will 

continue to do that as the roundabout project is underway.  

There were no comments from citizens, Mayor Hartfield closed the public 

hearing.  

B. ORDINANCE NO. 26-2023 AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE 

PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR KARL SCHNEIDER, 

ON BEHALF THE MILL DISTRICT LLC, FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

520, 530, 540, 560, AND 580 SOUTH MAIN STREET GRANVILLE, OHIO 

Manager Koehler stated that Council modified some portions of Code earlier this 

year that re-establishes the vernacular for what we are calling commercial 

window operations. There is a plan under this Mill District design to have a fast 

casual restaurant with a pickup window. A pickup window is food service window 

thru which prepaid or preordered items may be picked up with no point of sale or 

kiosk, but it is not by our definition a drive through window. A drive thru window 

which is currently in Code is also synonymous with drive in or drive up is a 

traditional food service window where there is a point of sale and there are menu 

boards and an opportunity to place an order while in line like the Wendy’s and 

Arby’s that we have along St. Rt. 16. A service window is where non-food and 

non-beverage items may be picked up. There are a few of those in the Village, 

like the banks and CVS.  

A pick-up window is a Conditional Use which means that has to be approved by 

the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals and is only allowed in the Gateway 

District. The pickup window must be at the rear or side of the structure, screening 

is required in the drive aisle, there is a limit of one window and one drive aisle per 

pickup window. Vehicle stacking must be confined to the subject property, the 

hours may be limited by Planning Commission but they can’t exceed eighteen 

hours a day. One pickup window permitted per one parcel and only one pickup 

window permitted within a five-hundred-foot radius window to window. A traffic 

study is required and a one in this case has been completed. 

The South Main corridor brings with it some inherent non-conformances with 

current Code and this development did require a number of variances which 



4 
 

were granted by BZBA but those variances would have been required no matter 

what would have been proposed there just because of the nature of the property.  

Mayor Hartfield stated that she wanted to touch on the size of the building for 

perspective. This building is not to exceed 11,995 square feet. The IGA is 29,000 

square feet. The Granville Mill, just the retail part is 7,000 square feet. The fire 

station that sits directly to the left of this building is 14,000 square feet, only first 

floor. This building is smaller than our fire station. The River Road complex is 

15,000 square feet, first floor only on two and three quarter acres. This is 11,900 

on four and a half acres with a possibility facing River Road of another 6,000 

square feet. I wanted people to have that in their minds eye when you think about 

how big this are.              

There were no comments from citizens, Mayor Hartfield closed the public 

hearing.  

C. ORDINANCE NO. 27-2023 AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF 

WATER TO THE VILLAGE OF ALEXANDRIA 

Manager Koehler stated that this contract is only for a year this time around 

because of all of the water initiatives that are ongoing on this side of the county.  

There were no comments from citizens, Mayor Hartfield closed the public 

hearing. 7:50pm 

10. OLD BUSINESS 

A. ORDINANCE NO. 25-2023 AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING A PETITION FOR 

THE ANNEXATION TO THE VILLAGE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

LOCATED ALONG NEW BURG STREET TOTALING 31.317 +/- ACRES IN 

GRANVILLE TOWNSHIP, OWNED BY DENISON UNIVERSITY 

Councilmember Demarest introduced and made a motion to adopt 

Ordinance No. 25-2023, second by Councilmember Mickelson 

Mayor Hartfield called for a roll call vote. Councilmember Demarest (yes), 

Councilmember Keethler Ball (yes), Councilmember Leithauser (yes), 

Councilmember Mickelson (yes), Councilmember Olbur (yes), Vice Mayor 

Johnson (yes), Mayor Hartfield (yes) 

Councilmember Mickelson said that she is really excited to see this happen, 

she thinks that it is a good thing for the Denison community and Village 

community.  



5 
 

Councilmember Olbur asked when the roundabout was projected to be 

completed.  

Manager Koehler stated that it is supposed to be completed before school starts 

next fall. 

Vice Mayor stated that he appreciates the effort of staff, Denison, the school and 

the Township on addressing the traffic issues, it is a really important part and it is 

a model of what can happen when we all work together.     

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

B. ORDINANCE NO. 26-2023 AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE 

PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR KARL SCHNEIDER, 

ON BEHALF THE MILL DISTRICT LLC, FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

520, 530, 540, 560, AND 580 SOUTH MAIN STREET GRANVILLE, OHIO 

Councilmember Mickelson introduced and made a motion to adopt 

Ordinance No. 26-2023, second by Councilmember Olbur 

Mayor Hartfield stated that there are going to be a lot of nice features, the 

Planning Commission did a nice job. 

Councilmember Mickelson stated that there was good give and take. 

Mayor Hartfield stated that she loves the rain garden in the front, the parking in 

the back, the building is going to have architectural depth and height so that it 

doesn’t look like a trip mall. It has a lot of attention to detail as we would expect. 

Councilmember Mickelson stated that it also has good pedestrian access.  

Councilmember Olbur stated that it is going to be good to have something that 

is going to help with our economic planning to bring more businesses here that 

will help our community as well.  

Mayor Hartfield called for a roll call vote. Councilmember Keethler Ball (yes), 

Councilmember Leithauser (yes), Councilmember Mickelson (yes), 

Councilmember Olbur (yes), Councilmember Demarest (yes), Vice Mayor 

Johnson (yes), Mayor Hartfield (yes) 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

C. ORDINANCE NO. 27-2023 AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF 

WATER TO THE VILLAGE OF ALEXANDRIA 



6 
 

Councilmember Keethler Ball introduced and made a motion to adopt 

Ordinance No. 27-2023, second by Councilmember Mickelson 

Mayor Hartfield called for a roll call vote. Councilmember Leithauser (yes), 

Councilmember Mickelson (yes), Councilmember Olbur (yes), Councilmember 

Demarest (yes), Councilmember Keethler Ball (yes), Vice Mayor Johnson (yes), 

Mayor Hartfield (yes) 

D. APPEAL HEARING OF THE OCTOBER 12, 2023 DECISION OF THE BOARD 

OF ZONING AND BUILDING APPEALS TO GRANT A CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT FOR 228 EAST ELM STREET AS A SHORT-TERM RENTAL 

Question presented on Appeal: Did the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals err 

in granting a conditional use permit? 

Mayor Harfield asked for the Court Reporter to start transcribing the hearing.  

The Court Reporter’s transcript is considered the official transcript.  What follows 

are the notes of the Clerk of Council which serve only as meeting minutes.  

Mayor Hartfield called for a roll call vote to enter into the appeal hearing. 

Councilmember Mickelson (yes), Councilmember Olbur (yes), Councilmember 

Demarest (yes), Councilmember Keethler Ball (yes), Councilmember Leithauser 

(yes), Vice Mayor Johnson (here), Mayor Hartfield (here) 

All members present. 

Mayor Hartfield stated that at this time we are going to call the case. This is an 

appeal hearing for the October 12, 2023 of the decision of the Board of Zoning 

and Building Appeals to grant a conditional use permit for 228 East Elm Street as 

a short-term rental and did the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals err in 

granting a conditional use permit. She then turned it over to the Law Director to 

provide information about the case.   

The appeal hearing started at 7:58pm.  

Law Director Mattes stated that as a preliminary matter he would move for 

submission of the entire record as to attached to the current Council packet 

which is the entire record required for appeal pursuant to Granville Village Code. 

He asked that Council formally accept that for the records.   

Mayor Hartfield stated that Council would accept into evidence the entire record 

as attached to the Council Packet.  

Mayor Hartfield stated that regarding this hearing and in regards to who may or 

may not speak during the hearing, this is a hearing that is open to the public but 



7 
 

it’s not a public hearing. Any party to the original hearing before the Board of 

Zoning and Building Appeals can be sworn in, any person who claimed a right 

but was not permitted to appear and be heard at the hearing before the Board of 

Zoning and Building Appeals but only after Council determines his/her exclusion 

was in error. She asked those that are going to be testifying tonight to take on 

oath.   

Clerk Klein swore in those testify in the appeal hearing. 

Mayor Hartfield asked Manager Koehler to give a brief overview of the Code. 

Manager Koehler stated that this section of Code dates back to 2020 when it 

came a priority of Council to come up with the legislation to manage short-term 

rentals within the Village of Granville. Our Code at the time only directly regulated 

bed and breakfasts and they have a whole separate definition than a short-term 

rental. Throughout the summer of 2020 staff developed the initial of the short-

term rental which passed late in 2020. We began implementation in 2021 and 

staff found some areas of that Code that was cumbersome to implement and 

other portions of its residents were concerned about a short-term rental operation 

that dated back decades that they now found were not compliant with the new 

Code.  

Early in 2022 staff brought to Council two significant revisions to the Code. One 

was grandfathering non-conforming operations that predate the Zoning Code and 

two is one that may come up tonight which is the contrasting definitions of 

property owners and host. Property owners were specifically defined to support 

short-term rental in only the Business District the downtown area and requiring 

hosts separately, as a separate definition in every other area. Downtown 

Business District defined a property owner which essentially allowed that 

property manager not to have to reside in the Village or the Township, simply in 

Licking County. Whereas a host in the more residential districts had to be 

someone more local. In terms of implementation this has had a studdered start 

and stop implementation based on things happening with the State. A couple of 

pieces of legislation that was potentially coming down from the State that would 

limit any municipalities to manage short-term rental codes. We have started 

processing short-term rental applications which is why you have this matter 

before you regarding the conditional use approval. I have sworn in to answer 

questions as necessary.      

Mayor Hartfield turned the matter over to the appellant. 8:08pm.   

Keith McWalters, 223 East Elm Street testified on behalf of the appellants. 



8 
 

Debi Walk-Yost, Village Planner and Manager Koehler provided answers.   

Daryl Tulimieri, 133 South Pearl Street, testified on behalf of the appellants.       

Ryan Hottle, 159 East Jeffrey Place, Columbus, Ohio testified on behalf of the 

appellee.   

        Larry Hottle, 224 East Elm Street testified on behalf of the appellee.  

Mayor Hartfield made a clarification regarding why neighbors have a right to 

appeal the decision of the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals.  

Daryl Tulimieri, 133 South Pearl Street, offered a correction to a statement that 

he made that is in the record from the minutes of the September hearing.  

Law Director Mattes asked Mayor Hartfield to close all evidence in this matter 

and to take the matter under advisement.  

Mayor Hartfield stated that at the conclusion Council can affirm, remand, 

reverse, or modify the decision of the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals. The 

decision has to be announced at the next regularly scheduled meeting and that 

decision must be formalized within forty-five days.   

Vice Mayor Johnson asked the Village Planner to provide clarification on the 

definition of “host” in the Village Residential District.  

Debi Walker-Yost, Village Planner read an email into record as new evidence 

dated October 10, 2023.  The email was accepted into evidence by Mayor 

Hartfield. 

There was discussion among Councilmembers regarding definitions in the Code.  

Mayor Hartfield closed the appeal hearing. 9:02pm 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

A. RESOLUTION NO. 2023-55 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE 

MANAGER TO AUCTION OR ADVERTISE FOR BIDS THE SALE OF 

SURPLUS EQUIPMENT 

Councilmember Mickelson introduced and made a motion to adopt 

Resolution No. 2023-55, second by Councilmember Olbur 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 



9 
 

B. RESOLUTION NO. 2023-56 A RESOLUTION TO AWARD THE LIME SLUDGE 

HAULING CONTRACT TO WING ENVIRONMENTAL 

Councilmember Olbur introduced and made a motion to adopt Resolution 

No. 2023-56, second by Councilmember Demarest 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

12. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Minutes from the Village Council Meeting of December 6, 2023  

Motion by Councilmember Mickelson to approve the minutes, second by 

Councilmember Keethler Ball 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

13. MAYOR’S COURT REPORT  

Vice Mayor Johnson made a motion to approve the Mayor’s Court report, 

second by Councilmember Mickelson 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

14. MANAGER’S REPORT  

Motion by Councilmember Mickelson to approve the Manager’s report, second 

by Councilmember Keethler Ball 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

15. COMMITTEE / COMMISSION / BOARD REPORTS 

Granville Community Foundation (Olbur) – No Report   

Granville Recreation District (Johnson) – No Report   

Planning Commission (Mickelson) stated that there was an application for the 

Denison annexation, there was an application that was approved for the One Love 

Café and bike shop that will be on South Main Street in front of the old Granville 

Lumber. They have done an amazing job repurposing that building. They are going to 

try doing a meeting once a month and see how that goes.  

Granville Arts Commission (Keethler Ball) – No Report    

Bryn Du Commission (Demarest) thanked everyone who was able to come to 

Bruce’s retirement party. One of the ways that they honored him was to name the 



10 
 

Artist in Residence building as the Cramer House. Athena begins to take on her new 

responsibilities.     

Open Space Committee (Mickelson) – No Report   

Tree & Landscape Commission (Koehler) – No Report   

Union Cemetery (Koehler) – No Report   

Environmental Sustainability Committee (Mickelson) stated Kristy Hawthorne 

presented and that was well received. At the Federal level they are working to 

streamline the permit process, maybe not such a good thing but keep an eye on that. 

There is also a study being done by the Ohio EPA and ODNR an inventory of all of the 

water surface and subsurface in the 15th county area with Licking County being 

ground zero because they want to know where the water is. Amazon is helping with a 

grant with the US EPA for the Moots Run Raccoon Valley area, looking at land use 

and water qualities, they have a project they would like to complete so they have put 

some money into that. The committee chair will present at a future meeting about the 

goals and aspirations of the committee. We are working to appoint a secretary.        

16. OTHER COUNCIL MATTERS 

Committee Assignments Discussion. Each Councilmember provided their preferences 

on Boards, Commissions, and Committee assignments.   

Councilmember Keethler Ball: Planning Commission, Planning & Zoning 

Committee, Arts Commission, Economic, Finance & Personnel Committee and the 

Old Academy Building Committee. 

Laura Mickelson: Planning Commission, Sustainability Committee, Open Space 

Councilmember Olbur: Community Foundation, Economic Development   

Councilmember Demarest: Bryn Du Commission, Union Cemetery, Open Space, 

Planning & Zoning Committee 

Vice Mayor Johnson: Granville Recreation District, Planning & Zoning Committee, 

Economic, Finance & Personnel 

Councilmember Leithauser: Granville Recreation District, Granville Education 

Foundation   

17. OTHER STAFF MATTERS 

Manager Koehler stated that this will be the last live streaming of Council meetings, it 

is not a requirement but the audio recordings will be posted on the website promptly.  



11 
 

The Council retreat will be Saturday, February 24th, the start time is 8:30am. It will be 

at the Bryn Du Mansion in the Carriage House.  

18. EXECUTIVE SESSION- Pursuant to O.R.C. 121.22(G) (3) Conferences with an 

attorney for the public body concerning disputes involving the public body that are the 

subject of pending or imminent court action. 

Vice Mayor Johnson made a motion to enter into executive session, second by 

Councilmember Mickelson 

Mayot Hartfield called for a roll call vote. Councilmember Olbur (yes), 

Councilmember Demarest (yes), Councilmember Keethler Ball (yes), 

Councilmember Leithauser (yes), Councilmember Mickelson (yes), Vice Mayor 

Johnson (yes), Mayor Hartfield (yes) 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 9:22pm 

Motion to leave executive session by Councilmember Demarest, second by 

Councilmember Olbur 

Mayor Hartfield called for a roll call vote. Councilmember Demarest (yes), 

Councilmember Keethler Ball (yes), Councilmember Leithauser (yes), 

Councilmember Mickelson (yes), Councilmember Olbur (yes), Vice Mayor 

Johnson (yes), Mayor Hartfield (yes) 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 9:34pm 

19. ADJOURNMENT 9:34pm 

Motion by Councilmember Demarest to adjourn, second by Vice Mayor Johnson 

Motion passed by a vote of 7-0 

 

 

 

Minutes submitted by: Autumn Klein, Clerk of Council 

Minutes approved by: Herb Koehler, Village Manager  

 




